Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee
Tuesday, 8th December, 2020
6.30 pm.
Virtual via Zoom and YouTube

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Minutes

3-4

To consider the minutes of the meeting of Heywood Township
Delegated Sub-Committee, held 2nd October 2019.
3

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

5

Objection to Traffic Orders - Bury and Rochdale Old Road,
Rochdale
To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of
Place / Director of Neighbourhoods.

5 - 44

6

Heywood Township Funds 2020/21
To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for a Safer and
Inclusive Community / Director of Neighbourhoods.

Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee Members
Councillor Jacqui Beswick
Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Alan McCarthy
Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Carol Wardle
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Peter Thompson
01706 924715
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

45 - 72

Agenda Item 2
HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATED SUB COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 2 October 2019
PRESENT: Councillors Beswick, Dutton, Susan Emmott, Malcolm, McCarthy,
Robinson, Rush and Wardle
OFFICERS: Stuart Hay and John Addison (Corporate Services)
7
8

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor O'Rourke
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Peter Rush declared a pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 6 the
Skills4Sport Programme application and left the room during the discussion
and vote, Councillor Dutton took the Chair during this item.
Councillor Carol Wardle also declared a pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 6,
Darnhill Youth Provision application and left the room during the discussion
and vote.

9

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
There were no items of business under this item.

10

MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 4th July 2019 be agreed as correct
record.

11

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business.

12

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2019/20
The Sub-Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods
which provided an update on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments
and balances of Heywood Township Funds 2019/20 and to enable the SubCommittee to consider the allocation of funds to proposed projects.
Alternatives considered: In considering the report, Members would consider
whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

Page 3

RESOLVED
1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood
Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1, 1A and
of the report be noted;
2. That decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix
of the report be noted;
3. That it be noted that the Townships and Communities Manager has
assessed proposed projects to be considered for funding against the
criteria of eligibility for the Heywood Township Fund, the priorities of the
Township and that any specific risks had been identified in the report;
4. That the applications for Township Funds be dealt with as follows:

Reference
Revenue:
HP/23/19

Application

Decision

Skills4Sport
Programme.

No award from 2019/20
Funds but ring-fenced
in full £6975 from
2020/21 Projects Fund.

HP/24/19

Darnhill
Provision

HP/26/19

Highways closure St. Full award £1200 from
Georges Day Parade £400 from each of the
2020
three Ward Funds.

Capital:
HTC/10/19

Youth Full award £3600 from
Projects Fund.

Hornby
Street/King Full award £4200
Street TRO

HTC/11/19

Roch
Valley
Hay Full award £6024.79
Meadow Improvements

HTC/12/19

Higher
lane/Chelmer
TRO

Page 4

Lomax Full award £4000.
Grove

Agenda Item 5

Report to Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

8th December 2020
Cabinet Member for
Quality of Place
Paul Wotton
Public

Objection to Traffic Orders - Bury and Rochdale Old Road,
Rochdale
Executive Summary
1.1

Proposals to introduce some No Waiting At Any Time Restrictions on part of
Bury and Rochdale Old Road (B6222), have been advertised and one
objection was received.

1.2

The section of road concerned is situated in two wards (Norden and North
Heywood) and in different townships.

1.3

Following consideration by both of
 Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee
and
 Heywood Township Committee
the matter was submitted for the Cabinet’s consideration on 29 September
2020.

1.4

Cabinet resolved to withdraw the item from its Agenda so that the matter could
be further discussed at Portfolio Holder and Township level in respect of
Heywood Township Committee’s concerns.

1.5

Following discussion involving the Portfolio Holder, Township Principals,
Members and Officers this report is presented for this Sub-Committee’s
consideration to determine an outcome for the two proposed TROs.

Page 5

Recommendation
2.1

This Sub-Committee are requested to consider additional information
presented in this report’s expanded Section 4 below to determine whether the
proposed Traffic Regulation Order
 Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions)
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008) (Amendment)
(No.61) Order
may now be resolved for implementation as advertised.

2.2

The proposed waiting restrictions to be introduced on Bury and Rochdale Old
Road (B6222), Rochdale, are on part of the Borough’s Strategic Road
network.

2.3

It is the recommendation of Highways Officers that the Orders should be
introduced as advertised to address the issues of:
 parked cars impeding through traffic on Bury and Rochdale Old Road
B6222
 parked cars causing reduced visibility at the junction with Elbut Lane
 parked cars causing visibility difficulties for both pedestrians and drivers
at the pedestrian refuge
 the possibility of larger vehicles having to travel on the wrong side of
the carriageway past the pedestrian refuge island due to
inconsiderately parked cars
 parked vehicles at this location obstructing the cycle lanes installed to
protect vulnerable road users forcing cyclists into the main traffic lane
on what is a 40mph speed limit road

2.4

Having received Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee’s
consent to proceed with the Order in this area as advertised, the purpose of
this report is to present further information in respect of Heywood Township
Committee’s concerns to justify its introduction there.

Page 6

Reason for Recommendation
3.1

At meetings both held on 10 March 2020 the same report was considered by
 Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub-Committee which
recommended the Order be implemented as advertised
and
 Heywood Township Committee which did not feel able to fully support
the proposals and referred the matter to Cabinet

3.2

Cabinet expressed that the matter be further discussed and then referred back
for Township to consider again.

3.3

The report to Cabinet on 29 September 2020 contained further justification to
support implementation of the scheme as advertised which is now presented
and revised for this Sub-Committee’s consideration.

3.4

The previous reports referred to can be found in a separate Appendix
document to this report.

3.5

Points intended to address the Heywood Township Committee’s concerns are
re-stated and expanded in Section 4, particularly 4.21 for this SubCommittee’s consideration.

3.6

For ease of reference the scheme plan from the previous reports is to be
found at the end of this report.

3.7

An additional plan showing further detail that was in just the Cabinet report is
also to be found at the end of this report.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

At the meeting of Cabinet held on 29 September 2020 Cabinet it was
resolved:
1. That this item be withdrawn from Agenda to enable further
discussion to take place between the Portfolio Holder and
Townships and that it be referred back to Townships as necessary
following those discussions.’

4.1

The Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub-Committee
recommended the Order be implemented as advertised.

4.2

The matter had previously 10 March 2020 Heywood Township Committee
which had resolved to refer the matter to the Cabinet for determination as
Members did not feel able to fully support the proposals detailed in the
report as they considered the area, covered by the proposed restrictions,
was too long and that a shorter distance should be considered.

Page 7

which

4.3

Two Orders were advertised because the ward and township boundaries
are situated along the centre of Bury and Rochdale Old Road and each
township has its own Traffic Regulation Order for such static restrictions as
the No Waiting At Any Time proposed.

4.4

Two plans at the end of this report both show the advertised scheme, and
the second one contains some of the detail mentioned in the remainder of
Section 4 below, namely the cycle lanes, borough boundary, bus stop and
pedestrian island refuge.

4.5

Both Orders are considered to be completely inter-dependant and neither
of them should be introduced in isolation because of the risk of
displacement of parked vehicles onto the opposite side of Bury and
Rochdale Old Road.

4.6

Furthermore, the objection received applies equally to both sides of the
road and therefore to both proposed Orders. Had the township boundary
not been along Bury and Rochdale Old Road then just one TRO would
have been proposed.

4.7

As far as has been ascertained and is also supported by comments made
by nearby residents and highway users in recent service requests, it is
concluded that demand for parking on the section of Bury and Rochdale
Old Road under consideration is generated by staff and visitors attending
the nearby Fairfield General Hospital, where parking charges apply.

4.8

Highways situated closer to the hospital and within Bury Council’s area
have a residents parking scheme which appears to further make the area
under consideration attractive to park and at no cost.

4.9

The popularity of this parking demand is assumed to be because it is one of
the closest unrestricted locations to the hospital and most importantly free of
parking charges.

4.10

The objector contends that parked cars do not obstruct the free flow of
traffic; a statement which is not supported by observations together with
unsolicited comments made by members of the public who have expressed
concern about large vehicles including ambulances having to pass the
central pedestrian refuge island close to Elbut Lane on the wrong side of the
road thus creating a risk of meeting a vehicle ‘head-on’ travelling in the
opposite direction, which also creates a risk for pedestrians crossing there
who would not expect to look in the direction of a vehicle approaching from
the ‘wrong’ direction..

Page 8

4.11

The objector feels it acceptable to park partially on the pavement because
there is sufficient remaining space for pedestrians. Footways should not be
parked upon and this activity is an indication that the road is of insufficient
width for parking to take place and maintaining the free flow of traffic.

4.12

Observations of pavement parking in this location show that aside from the
risk of damage to lightly constructed footway surfaces, its width often
becomes narrowed down too much even for solo pedestrians to walk in
comfort, and clearly becomes a far greater inconvenience to groups of
pedestrians (potentially including children), those adults with child buggies,
and disabled persons who may be using wheel chairs or powered mobility
scooters.

4.13

In the worst cases of footway obstruction, pedestrians may be unacceptably
compelled to walk in the carriageway which must be regarded as an unsafe
activity on this busy main road.

4.14

Furthermore any parking close to the pedestrian refuge island (situated
close to a bus stop where it can be reasonably expected to be well used)
reduces pedestrian and driver visibility.

4.15

The objector, who does use Bury and Rochdale Old Road as a driver,
pedal cyclist and to park on, describes the current cycle provision as not fit
for purpose and dismisses the scheme’s aim of removing parked vehicles
to reduce instances where cyclists are forced into the carriageway with
other traffic.

4.16

It is true that cycle lane provision is not continuous due to available road
width limitations. The scheme is situated in a section of Bury and Rochdale
Old Road where a higher speed limit of 40 mph applies. On such a speed
of road the cyclist may be regarded as a vulnerable road user and whilst
not fully segregated is afforded some separation from vehicles where
possible.

4.17

The objector’s view is that most of the parking which is the subject of these
restrictions takes place in the daytime period between 0900 and 1700hrs.
Observations do largely support that view. Furthermore much of it takes
place alongside a field rather than directly outside of residential properties
to the potential annoyance of their occupiers. Whilst this is true, the issues
of obstructing through traffic, parking on footways, and reducing visibility at
the central island crossing point outside of those times remain unaddressed
which is why the restrictions are proposed to apply at all times.

Page 9

4.18

In terms of the motorist selecting where to park, there are potentially hard
choices to make because of the supply, demand, and cost of parking and
the convenience of any parking locations. The centre of interest at Fairfield
General Hospital is well served by buses from both of Bury and Rochdale
town centres every 10 minutes in each direction for 13 hours each weekday
which does provide an alternative to travel by car but of course would not
be convenient for all persons.

4.19

Whilst it is true there were no recorded accidents in the last 3 years, this
does not make the issues of obstructing carriageways, footways, and
junction visibility acceptable and considering it is a 40 mph speed limit road,
the result of a collision between a vulnerable user, either pedestrian or
cyclist, significantly increases the likelihood that any injury could be severe
or fatal.

4.20

Equality Impact Assessment
The Committee report of 10 March contains an EIA in its Appendix D.

4.21

Alternatives Considered

4.21.1

The restrictions proposed are believed necessary to alleviate some
identified parking problems affecting and obstructing traffic flow,
pedestrians, and junction visibility along Bury and Rochdale Old Road.

4.21.2

Scaling down the proposals or not implementing them in the opinion of
Highways Officers will not address the issues raised.

4.21.3

Similarly partial introduction of the scheme on just one side of Bury and
Rochdale Old Road by introducing only one of the two proposed Traffic
regulation Orders would not address the identified problem and cause
immediate displacement onto the opposite side of the road further risking
obstruction of visibility and its associated problems at the central traffic
island used by pedestrians.

4.21.4

Heywood Township Committee’s Members as minuted in Section 4.2
above “did not feel able to fully support the proposals detailed in the report
as they considered the area, covered by the proposed restrictions, was too
long and that a shorter distance should be considered”

4.21.5

The section of Bury and Rochdale Old Road under consideration can be
described in four sections and some of the detail referred to is shown on
the two plans at the end of this report.

Page 10

4.21.6

North side from the borough boundary to Elbut Lane (Rochdale North
Township)
Established unregulated parking bays, a bus stop and some No Waiting At
Any Time restrictions are to remain without alteration.

4.21.7

South side from the borough boundary to Elbut Lane (Heywood
Township)
This section has no properties alongside it, and is the location of most of
the problematic parking which restricts, narrows and risks damaging its
footway, narrows the carriageway, makes the pedestrian crossing refuge
much harder and arguably less safe to use, and sometimes causes
vehicles to travel on the wrong side of the road to pass the refuge, thus
risking a head-on collision with approaching traffic, and furthermore creates
a risk to pedestrians who would not be expecting a vehicle to approach
from the wrong direction. For these reasons, No Waiting At Any time is
proposed.

4.21.8

North side from Elbut Lane Road to the former Melba Plastics
premises entrance (Rochdale North Township)
The land alongside this section is largely undeveloped. The few properties
fronting onto it have their own off-street parking provision and over half of
its length has a cycle lane at the kerbside, which apart from one small
refuge island has no separation from ordinary traffic, and is without the
protection of any waiting restrictions. In order to further improve junction
visibility at Elbut Lane, protect the cycle lane, and prevent displacement of
parked vehicles, No Waiting At Any Time is proposed.

4.21.9

South side from Elbut Lane Road to the former Melba Plastics
premises entrance (Heywood Township)
Around half of this section has properties situated alongside it, all of which
have their own off-street parking provision. For nearly all of its length there
is also a cycle lane at the kerbside, which again has no separation from
ordinary traffic other than one small refuge island. In order to protect the
cycle lane, protect access and visibility into and out of a bus turning facility
situated close to and opposite the junction with Elbut Lane, and prevent
displacement of parked vehicles which could obscure visibility at driveways
and thus attract complaints from affected residents, No Waiting At Any
Time is proposed.

4.21.10 The immediately preceding paragraphs 4.21.6 to 4.21.9 break the length of
Bury and Rochdale Old Road under consideration into four sections,
examining each of them and it is Highways Officers conclusion that the
scheme merits introduction to its full extent as was originally advertised.

Page 11

Costs and Budget Summary
5.1

The estimated cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders is £4800 from
capital funds approved by Rochdale Township Action and Resources
Delegated Sub-Committee prior to being separated into separate north and
south township areas.

5.2

The successor committee is Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub
Committee.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely
and efficiently for all traffic (including pedestrians) including maintaining the
expeditious movement of traffic (Section 1(1)c Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 refers) and believes it is expedient to make the proposed Order.

6.2

Furthermore, it has a duty under the Traffic Management Act 2004 to
maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

6.3

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Orders relate
to a highway of strategic importance and are processed in accordance with
the Council’s Constitution Part 3 Section 8.2.2 in that Committee(s) have
delegated power to confirm the proposals and the Order.

6.4

Should this Sub-Committee not now feel able to confirm the proposals and
the Order, the matter would require referral back to Cabinet to determine an
outcome.
Consultation

7.1

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure)
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

7.2

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on
11th November 2019.

7.3

Notices of Intention were posted on site and published in the local
newspapers on 13th and 14th November 2019 – See Appendix B of the
Committee report.

7.4

The objection period ran until 5th December 2019.

Page 12

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

Reports to Rochdale North
Township Delegated Sub
Committee on 10 March 2020,
and Cabinet on 29 September
2020

For Further Information Contact:

Situated in the meeting Agenda
documents

Paul Wotton, 01706 924593,
paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 13

APPENDIX A – Scheme plan as advertised

Page 14

Bury and Rochdale Old Road (B6222)
Plan showing additional details referred to

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Agenda Item 6
Report to Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

8 December 2020
Cabinet Member for
Neighbourhoods,
Community & Culture
Sharron Worrall
Public Document

Heywood Township Funds 2020/21
1.
1.1

2.

Executive Summary
Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments
and balances of Heywood Township Funds 2020/21 and enable the allocation
of funds to proposed projects.
Recommendation

2.1

Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood
Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1, 1A and 2.

2.2

Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in
Appendix 3.

2.3

Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to
proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4

Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed proposed
projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for the
Heywood Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any specific risks
have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5

The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice Chair of the committee, to be given delegated authority to make decisions
on any deferred projects.

3.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

Management of the Heywood Township Fund is delegated to the Heywood
Township Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2

Heywood Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s
community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 45

3.3

4.

To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Heywood
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of
Heywood Township Funds 2020/21 in Appendix 1 and 2. Actual/committed
spend for revenue funds is 65.05% and capital funds is 79.18%.

4.2

Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Heywood Township
Delegated Sub Committee to ensure that Members are aware of the projects
that have been agreed within their Ward. Members are asked to note the
decisions made under the delegated arrangements since the last committee
meeting in Appendix 3.

4.3

Members consider the applications for funding as detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4

Members are asked to give delegated authority to make decisions on any
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation
with the Chair and Vice Chair, to reduce the potential of carry forward funds at
the end of the financial year.

4.5

Alternatives Considered
In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

Heywood Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2020/21 in Appendix
1 and 2.

5.2

Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use of
the Heywood Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3

Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring
reports will be presented to future committees.

6.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be
identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

6.2

The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan will
be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in line with
the identified priorities.

6.3

The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to meet
their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those
priorities.

Page 46

6.4

Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the Council
has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of any
changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to provide
them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with them and
any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding. Therefore,
if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a service
provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their obligations
under the Compact.

7.
7.1

Consultation
Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee receives regular monitoring
reports about the use of the funds. Any proposal for funding requires support
from at least one Member. All proposals will to be consulted on as appropriate
with Members, residents and other stakeholders.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

N/A

For Further Information Contact:

Sharron Worrall Tel: 01706 924802
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 47

APPENDIX 1
HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2020/21

£

Budget b/f 2019/20
Base Budget 2020/21
Income/Adjustments 2020/21
Budget Available 2020/21
Budgets transferred to services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2020/21

9,481
56,694
13,379
79,554
36,412
15,341
51,754
27,800

Forecast Outturn
Potential under/(over)spend 2020/21

79,554
-

Page 48

Fund

Projects Fund
Events Fund
North Ward Fund
West Ward Fund
Hopwood Hall Ward
Total

Balance b/f
2019/20
£
4,018
615
2,217
66
2,565
9,481

Base
Budget
2020/21
£
40,694
8,000
3,000
3,000
2,000
56,694

Income/
Adjustments
2020/21
2,321
710
4,998
3,621
1,729
13,379

% Actual
Spend
45.77%

% Actual +
Committed
65.05%

Revised
Budget
2020/21

Actuals to
Period
£

47,033
9,325
10,215
6,687
6,294
79,554

8,378
1,931
660
773
11,742

Committed
to Period
£
10,993
2,217
65
2,065
15,341

Virements
within Virements to
Services
Township
£
Funds
£
24,670
24,670

Total to
Period
£
44,041
4,149
725
2,839
51,754

Budget
remaining
2020/21
£
2,992
9,325
6,066
5,962
3,455
27,800

APPENDIX 1A

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

HOPWOOD HALL WARD FUNDS
£6,294
Budget
Balance
£3,455.37
Ref
HW/08/13
HW/09/19
HW/05/20
HW/06/20

Project/Activity
Ward Environmental Improvements
St George's Day Parade 2020 Traffic Management & Road
Closures
Victor Street Litter Bin
Links Road Litter Bin

Committed Spend
£2,000.00
£65.34
£397.09
£376.20
Total

£2,065.34

£773.29

NORTH HEYWOOD WARD FUNDS
£10,215
Budget
Balance
£6,066.47
Ref
HW/10/13
HW/04/18
HW/09/19
HW/01/20
HW/03/20
HW/04/20
HW/08/20

Project/Activity
Ward Environmental Improvements
Vale Street/Rochdale Lane Guard Rail
St George's Day Parade 2020 Traffic Management & Road
Closures
Chadwick Lane Litter Bin
Bank Top Dropped Kerbs
Lindum Court Social
Heywood Hall Road Speed Survey

Committed Spend
£1,602.00
£550.00
£65.33
£376.20
£605.00
£200.00
£750.00
Total

£2,217.33

£1,931.20

WEST HEYWOOD WARD FUNDS
£6,687
Budget
Balance
£5,961.67
Ref
HW/09/19
HW/02/20

Project/Activity
St George's Day Parade 2020 Traffic Management & Road
Closures
Bury New Road Bollards

Committed Spend
£65.33
£660.00
Total

Page 49

£65.33

£660.00

APPENDIX 2

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2020/21

£

Budget b/f (2019/20)
Base Budget 2020/21
Income/Adjustments 2020/21
Budget Available 2020/21
Budgets transferred to services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2020/21

58,921
54,240
(18,984)
94,177
29,586
44,981
74,567
19,610

Forecast Outturn
Potential under/(over)spend 2020/21

94,177
-

Project

Page 50

HTC/07/16 Starkey Street Junction Improvements
HTC/09/19 Heywood Civic Quarter Improvements
HTC/01/20 Heywood Town Centre Nativity Scene
HTC/02/20 Sandon House Isolation to Inclusion
HTC/03/20 Chelmer Grove/Higher Lomax Lane
Junction Bollards
HTC/04/20 Recovery Republic Refurbishment
HTC/06/20 St James Football Club (Section 106
shortfall) - Decommitted
HTC/07/20 Heywood Cricket Club Mower

Unallocated Funds 2020/21

Total

Balance b/f
2019/20
£
44,981
13,940

Base
Budget
2020/21
£
710
2,698
1,500
1,180

% Actual
Spend
31.41%

% Actual +
Committed
79.18%

Income/
Adjustments
2020/21
£
-

Revised
Budget
2020/21
£
44,981
14,650
2,698
1,500

-

4,558
-

58,921

5,000
38,594
54,240

(18,984)
(18,984)

Actuals/
Virement to
Period
£
14,650
2,698
1,500

Committed
to Period
£

Total to
Period
£

44,981
-

44,981
14,650
2,698
1,500

Budget
Remaining
2020/21
£
-

1,180

1,180

-

1,180

-

4,558

4,558

-

4,558

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,000
19,610
94,177

5,000
29,586

44,981

5,000
19,610
94,177

19,610
19,610

Adjustments - Reduction of £18,984 in 2020/21 as agreed at Cabinet on 29 September 2020 (categorised as slippage into 2021/22)

APPENDIX 3

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION
Members note the delegated decisions made since the last Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee
Name of Project

Project Description

HP/03/20

Showtime

Kat’s Dance Academy’s non-profit group, Kats Dance Events
Heywood
and Community Team, encourages young dancers to participate Township
in tap, ballet and freestyle dance. A show is staged once every
two years to give the students an opportunity to showcase their
developing skills/abilities and experience a public performance.
The provision of costumes to be used in the show and future
events/shows will enable additional students to be involved in
the performances at no cost to their families.

HP/04/20

It's a Kind of Magic

PossAbilities propose to host a show at Middleton Arena to
Heywood
enable people with learning disabilities to experience and
Township
participate in dance, music and comedy performances, set
design and production, scene shifting and meeting/greeting
those who attend the show. Members of the public including
family and carers are asked to pay a modest ticket price with
proceeds going towards the cost of the production. The show
encourages vulnerable adults and young people to become
more active in their local community, manage ther physical and
emotional health and it reduces social isolation.

Page 51

Ref No.

HW/01/20

HW/02/20

HP/07/20

Ward

Chadwick Lane Litter
Bin

Supply and installation of a closed top metal litter bin on
Chadwick Lane, Heywood to encourage the community to
dispose of their litter responsibly and keep the area clean.
Bury New Road
Supply and installation of six bollards on the footway adjacent to
Bollards
the entrance to Boo Hole Farm on Bury New Road, Heywood to
prevent parked vehicles causing an obstruction and improve
accessibility for pedestrians.
Heywood Civic Quarter Provision of four tree carved sculptures from the trees to be
Tree Carved
felled between Heywood Civic Square and the car park to
Sculptures
complement the landscaping scheme in the area.
Environmental Management to fund one of the carved
sculptures.

Page 1 of 3

North
Heywood

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£1,293.75 27 July 2020
Awarded £1,293.75 from
Projects Fund

Amount

£5,000 27 July 2020

Awarded £5,000 from
Projects Fund

£376.20 29 July 2020

Awarded £376.20 from
Ward Fund

West
Heywood

£660 10 August 2020

Heywood
Township

£2,360 11 August 2020

Awarded £660 from
Ward Fund

Awarded £2,360 from
Projects Fund

Name of Project

Project Description

HTC/04/20

Recovery Republic
Refurbishment

Recovery Republic CIC propose refurbishment of the reception Heywood
area of their building to comply with issues identified within their Township
Covid-19 risk assessment. Works will consist of the
replacement of the reception table with a counter and screens to
ensure efficient social distancing and directional flow of people
to avoid the potential of viral transmission to protect staff and
visitors.

HW/04/20

Lindum Court Social

Lindum Court, Heywood is a retirement housing scheme
North
managed by Rochdale Boroughwide Housing that offers an
Heywood
independent living service to tenants with the provision of
regular social activities. Lunches and VJ celebration themed
sandwich boxes filled with treats have been delivered to isolated
tenants during the Covid pandemic to boost their morale.

HP/08/20

Heywood Market Car
Park Repairs

Repair potholes in the carriageway at four locations within
Heywood Market Car Park to ensure the safe use for
pedestrians and vehicles.

HW/05/20

Victor Street Litter Bin Supply and installation of a closed top metal litter bin in
Hopwood Park at the Victor Street entrance to encourage the
community to dispose of their litter responsibly and keep the
area clean.

HTC/07/20

Heywood Cricket Club Heywood Cricket Club's current commercial mower is over 20
Heywood
Mower
years old and unreliable in maintaining the outfield grounds as it Township
regularly breaks down. A third party service has been cutting
the outfield at a cost of £80 per session (twice a week during the
growing season). Provision of a replacement commercial
mower will enable the club to cost effectively maintain the
outfield ground in top condition to host cricket matches.

HW/06/20

Links Road Litter Bin

Page 52

Ref No.

HP/10/20

HW/03/20

Ward

£1,810 26 August 2020 & 3 Awarded £1,810 from
September 2020
Projects Fund

Hopwood
Hall

£397.09 08 September 2020 Awarded £397.09 from
Ward Fund

Installation of pedestrian access dropped kerbs outside 12 Bank North
Top, Heywood to facilitate pedestrian accessibility.
Heywood
Page 2 of 3

£200 01 September 2020 Awarded £200 from
Ward Fund

Heywood
Township

Supply and installation of a closed top metal litter bin on Links
Hopwood
Road, Heywood to encourage the community to dispose of their Hall
litter responsibly and keep the area clean.
Cash register for Little Little Monkey's Charity Shop raises funds to support Heywood in Middleton
Monkeys Shop
need families with children to enhance the quality of life of local Township
children. A new cash register is required as the current register
is no longer operational and it is planned to increase the opening
hours of the shop so a reliable machine that can efficiently
process transactions to speed up service whilst having functions
that reduce attempts of theft and fraud is needed.
Bank Top Pedestrian
Access Kerbs

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£4,557.60 25 August 2020
Awarded £4,557.60 from
Capital Fund

Amount

£5,000 12 September 2020 Awarded £5,000 from
Capital Fund

£376.20 16 September 2020 Awarded £376.20 from
Ward Fund
£231.58 01 October 2020

£605 01 October 2020

Awarded £231.58 from
Projects Fund

Awarded £605 from
Ward Fund

Ref No.

Name of Project

Project Description

Ward

HW/08/20

Heywood Hall Road
Speed Survey

Speed survey on Heywood Hall Road, Heywood to provide
North
evidence of vehicle speeds, classifications and volumes over a Heywood
week long period to determine if there is a problem with speeds
and type of vehicles using the road. A report will be prepared
from the results of the survey to identify the issues and options
to address concerns.

Page 53
Page 3 of 3

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£750 05 November 2020 Awarded £750 from
Ward Fund

Amount

APPENDIX 4

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2020/21 - PROPOSED PROJECTS FOR DECISION

Heywood Township Revenue Funds 2020/21 - Proposed project for decision
Request
Cost
Originator
Councillor Beswick

Name of Project

HP/13/20

Place
£8,250
Yes
Improvements to Argyle Parade, Heywood in front of the shops/library consisting of removal of the broken notice board and make good paving; repaint 15 bollards and steel
handrail; removal of remnant shrub beds and weed spray before soil and grass seed area; stump grind existing tree stump in gardens and plant new tree; remove shrubs in front
of the library, soil and grass seed area; replace broken drainage grids; repaint metal seating at centre of gardens; remove remnant of old bollard to side of library and make good
paving. (Project brief at Appendix 4A)

Project
Description

Ward

Fund Criteria &
Priorities Met

Ref

West Heywood

Darnhill/Argyle Parade Improvements

Risk implication Estimate assumes no appreciable additional wear and tear between now and when the works are carried out or additional damage to the grids, etc.

Heywood Township Capital Funds 2020/21 - Proposed projects for decision
Request
Originator
Ward Councillors

HTC/07/16

Place
See
Yes
description
Improvements to Starkey Street, Bamford Road and West Starkey Street junction that is a crossroad and operates as a priority junction with give way markings on the West
Starkey Street side and a stop line on the Starkey Street side of Bamford Road. Bamford Road is the predominant flow with the route across the junction from Starkey Street to
West Starkey Street being a popular rat run to avoid the A58 in Heywood town centre. Turning manoeuvres by those accessing the leisure centre add to the concerns. (Options
report at Appendix 4B)
Option 1a - Starkey Street side road closure to vehicular traffic = £41,900 (traffic order fees not included)
Option 1b - Starkey Street side road closure to vehicular traffic with improved radius on West Starkey Street = £86,000 (traffic order fees not included)
Option 2 - Mini roundabout = £96,000 (traffic order fees not included)
Option 3a - Signalisation of the junction three way = £388,519.88 (traffic order fees not included)
Option 3b - Signalisation of the junction four way = £552,546.74 (traffic order fees not included)
Option 3c - Signalisation of the junction pedestrian crossing only = £525,900.08 (traffic order fees not included)
Option 4 - One way system from Bamford Road up Starkey Street and one way from Queens Park Road up both Heywood Hall Road and Langton Street to Bamford Road
(estimated cost does not include for any road crossings or extra cabling needed or future maintenance costs or traffic order fees) = £72,000
Note: Traffic order fees are estimated to be in the region of £4,500

Page 54

Name of Project

Project
Description

Ward

Fund Criteria &
Priorities Met

Ref

Starkey Street, Bamford Road and West Starkey Street Junction Improvements

North Heywood

Cost

Members are advised this proposed scheme has an amount of £44,981 currently committed from Heywood Township Capital Fund.
Risk implication Estimates for all options do not include costs for safety audits, traffic orders, statutory undertakers service diversion or land acquisition.
HTC/08/20
Project
Description

Heywood
Place
Councillor
See
Township
Yes
McCarthey
description
Improvements to Heywood Civic Concourse that will involve the removal of the existing paving and replace with high quality amenity paving similar to the current product install
around Number One Riverside, Rochdale. Option 1 area cost = £110,800 and Option 2 area cost = £130,800 (Project brief with diagram of option 1 and 2 areas at Appendix 4C)

Heywood Civic Concourse Improvements

Risk implication Estimate assumes no statutory undertakers service diversions will be required. Option 1 contains an area of land at the entrance of The Phoenix Centre that is not Council land
and permission would be required from the landowner to undertake any works and agree arrangements for its future maintenance. Heywood Township Fund's terms and
conditions (3c) state that improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain cannot be funded unless there is a demonstrable wider community benefit.

Page 1 of 1

APPENDIX 4A

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Heywood

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Jacqui Beswick

Project Manager & Ext

Michael Buczman

Completed by

Ian Trickett

Township Ref

Service Ref

HP/13/20

Date Completed

12/11/20

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Darnhill Argyle Parade Landscaping

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

To improve the general appearance Argyle Parade landscaping in front
of shops / library


Remove broken notice board, tipping charge and make good
paving £300
 Repaint (2 coats) 15 bollards and 70m of steel handrail £1,450
 Car park remnant shrub beds: remove shrubs, weed-spray,
prepare soil and grass seed to return to turf £950
 Stump grind existing tree stump in gardens, prepare soil and
plant new tree and replacement tree if first one vandalized at all
£700
 Remove shrubs to library front, soil and grass seed £1,450
 Replace broken drainage grids various £850
 Repaint metal seating at centre of gardens £850
 Remnant old bollard to side of library – dig out and make good
paving £950
 Project management fees at 10% £750
Total project costs £8,250
Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Refresh of existing landscaping to provide design that will look good for
future decades and provide a sense of civic pride.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
No appreciable additional wear and tear between now and when works carried out
Risks that may change estimate
Additional damage to grids etc
Total Estimated Fees

£750

Total Estimated Works Costs

£7500

Total Cost

£8,250

Amount Approved by Township

£

Page 55

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

30/1/21

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
Work commenced on site

Completion Date

30/3/21

Evidence
Work completed on site

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

12/11/20

KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 56

APPENDIX 4B
NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

Highways & Engineering Service

Bamford Road/Starkey Street
Junction Improvement
Option Report
Nov 2020
Rochdale MBC
Number One Riverside
Smith Street

Page

1

Rochdale

Page 57
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

CONTENTS

3

Background

3

Options

4

Estimates

7

Conclusion

7

Drawings

9

Page

2

Introduction

Page 58
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

INTRODUCTION
In early 2011 the Highways and Engineering Service had identified the
Bamford Road/Starkey Street/West Starkey Street junction as having an
accident record requiring investigation. A commissioning form was submitted
to Heywood Township Committee seeking funding to carry out a feasibility
study into potential improvements at the junction. In the previous 3 years
from March 2020 there had been 4 accidents at this junction, all being slight
and 1 involving a stolen car.
The funding did not include for any traffic counts to be carried out and
therefore the recent request by Ward Councillors to produce a written report
to discuss the possible introduction of either a mini roundabout, traffic signals
or a one way system has not been based on measured traffic flows.

BACKGROUND
This junction layout is that of a crossroads and operates as a priority junction
with give way markings on the West Starkey St side and a stop line on the
Starkey Street side of Bamford Road. According to the Department for
Transports two thirds of accidents happen at this type of junctions.
Bamford Road is relatively highly trafficked with a proportion of buses and
HGV’s using the route. West Starkey Street services the Heywood Leisure
Centre resulting in the junction being trafficked most of the day and evening
also subject to a high volume of pedestrians.
To the south west of the junction is a plot of vacant land which was the site of
a primary school now demolished. Bamford Road to the south of the junction
forms the route for a proposal to divert the A58 around Heywood town centre.
In 2011 this was considered and a possible signalised junction layout
developed to allow sale of the land to be considered.

Page

3

The fundamental problem with the current junction is that if forms a
crossroads. As mentioned Bamford Road is the predominant flow with the
route across the junction from Starkey Street to West Starkey Street being a
popular rat run to avoid the A58 in Heywood town centre. Turning
manoeuvres by those accessing the leisure centre add to the concerns.

Page 59
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

OPTIONS
Three options for the junction have be identified and a further option for the
introduction of a one way system to Heywood Hall Road, Starkey Street and
Langton Street area.

Option 1a, 1b

Starkey Street closed to vehicular traffic

Option 2

Introduction of a mini roundabout

Option 3a, b, c

Signalisation of the junction

Option 4

One way system

Option 1a - Starkey Street closed to vehicular traffic
Advantages of side street closure option 1a:
 Encourages traffic to the use the A58 reducing junction traffic.
 Traffic have convenient streets to use either side of Starkey Street
 Minor inconvenience to residents
 Reducing junction traffic crossing Bamford Rd positive effect on safety.
 Cost effective
 Dilution of traffic avoiding ‘rat run’

Disadvantages of side street closure option 1a:


Minor inconvenience to residents’

Option 1b - Starkey Street closed to vehicular traffic with improved radii
(Traffic Recommended Option)

Encourages traffic to the use the A58 reducing junction traffic.



Traffic have convenient streets to use either side of Starkey Street



Minor inconvenience to residents



Reducing junction traffic crossing Bamford Rd positive effect on safety.



Dilution of traffic avoiding ‘rat run’

Page 60
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

Page



4

Advantage of side road closure with improved radius option 1b:

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET



Improved radii aids vehicular movements and prevent vehicles
overrunning the footway thereby making it safer for pedestrians.



Improved radii will accommodate dropped kerbs and tactile paving to
aid pedestrian movement.

Disadvantages of side road closure with improved radius option 1b:


Minor inconvenience to residents’



Costly due to land acquisition.

Option 2 - Introduction of a mini roundabout
Advantages of a mini roundabout;


Although the initial construction costs may be greater for roundabouts
than for other types of junction, because of the larger land-area
required, vehicle operating costs are likely to be less because they
permit a free flow of traffic when demand is light and they are selfregulating.

Disadvantages of a mini roundabout;


During uncongested off-peak periods, roundabouts will generally result
in less delay than a similar junction with signal control.



Roundabouts are not generally compatible with urban traffic control
systems, as they cannot respond to positive control commands.



They may also be unsatisfactory where there are cyclists or pedestrians
in significant numbers, such as high footfall areas. ref:(Road and urban
transport guidance notes)



Costly due to land acquisition



Starkey Street currently has a stop sign due to the lack of visibility with
Bamford Road. A mini roundabout requires greater visibility than what
is currently available. If extra land is not made available, there will be
insufficient sight lines to support the installation of a mini roundabout.

Option 3

Page

5

Advantages for traffic signal control include options 3a, 3b and 3c:

Page 61
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET



Minimising the space required, particularly at constrained sites where
physical restrictions could make other types of control costly and
difficult to provide;



The flexibility to assist traffic using specific approach arms or particular
categories of road-user and to respond to a wide range of different
traffic conditions; (Dept for Transport)



The ability to make special provisions for pedestrians and cyclists.

Disadvantages for traffic signal control include;


Increased delays and operating costs, especially in uncongested
conditions, such as at off-peak times, when signals may impose more
delay and operating costs on traffic than is necessary to resolve
conflicts safely.



Some increased risk of certain types of traffic accident, such as front-to
rear collisions under braking



The maintenance costs of signal equipment, with the additional
requirement continuously to monitor signal operations and to update
signal-settings under fixed time control



The limited facility for U-turning manoeuvres.

Option 4
Advantages of one-way streets:


One-way may be used as part of an area-wide scheme to break up a
road into short section and indirect routes. By creating detours, they
can discourage ‘rat running’ but may encourage higher speeds because
of the absence of opposing traffic.

It is not advantageous to have short lengths of one-way which can lead
to abuse from drivers not adhering to the one way. Which could be the
case in this instance with short lengths on Heywood Hall Road , Starkey
St and Langton St.



One-way streets could lead to speeding traffic as vehicles would be
unopposed. As this is an area of high footfall (school, church, and
leisure centre) this would be a significant safety issue. ref:(Road and
urban transport guidance notes)

Page 62
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

Page



6

Disadvantages of one way streets:

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET



Would lead to heightened inconvenience of residents, for example a
resident of 42 Clitheroe Close would have to turn left onto Heywood
Hall Road, left onto Bamford Road, left onto Starkey Street to get to
Queens Park Road.



The signage for a one way system would be wholesale and expensive.

ESTIMATES
The following estimates do not include for safety audits, traffic orders, statutory
undertakers service diversion or land acquisition.

Option 1a - side road closed Starkey St. Estimated costs £41’900 not
including traffic order fees.
Option 1b - side street closed Starkey Street with improved radius on West
Starkey Street. Estimated costs £86,000 not including traffic order fees.
Option 2 - mini Roundabout. Estimated costs £96,000 not including traffic
order fees.
Option 3a - signalised junction 3 way estimated costs £388,519.88 not
including traffic order fees.
Option 3b - signalised junction 4 way estimated costs £552,546.74 not
including traffic order fees.
Option 3c - signalised junction pedestrian crossing only estimated costs
£525,900.08 not including traffic order fees.
Option 4 - one way from Bamford Road up Starkey Street and one way from
Queens Park Road up both Heywood Hall Road and Langton St to Bamford
Road. Estimated costs £72,000 does not include for any road crossings or
extra cabling needed or future maintenance costs. Not including traffic order
fees.

Page

7

Note* Traffic order fees are estimated to be in the region of £4500

Page 63
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

CONCLUSION
Having considered the various options and with regard to the likely costs the
most viable option is to physically close Starkey Street. The costs associated
with the introduction of a roundabout or traffic signals would be difficult to
justify.
It should be noted that it is normal practice to measure the volume of traffic
using the various roads which are subject to the likely introduction of a
roundabout or traffic signals.
There is a hierarchy applied to road junctions which in general terms is as
follows;


Priority junction



Mini roundabout



Standard roundabout



Signals



Grade separated.

The choice of junction is based on predicted traffic flows. To warrant the
introduction of a roundabout requires daily flows in the order of thousands
and therefore it is unlikely that the flows on Starkey Street and Bamford Road
would warrant the move away from a priority junction.
To assess the need for the introduce a mini roundabout, traffic signals or one
way system will require extensive traffic surveys to be executed to allow
detailed designs to be carried out.
It is normal practice to use measured traffic flows to assess the suitability of a
particular junction. The computer program ARCADY is used to study the
performance of a roundabout and LINSIG to assess a signalised junction.
In compiling this report no traffic flows were available. The reason for the
proposal to close Starkey Street was determined from accidents statistics
which in most instances were a result of the junction being a crossroads in
layout.

Page

8

To satisfy the need to improve safety at the junction the only remedial action
needed is to close Starkey Street thus reducing the complexity and vehicular
conflict down to that of a priority ‘T’ junction.

Page 64
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

Page 65

Option 1a - side road closed Starkey St. Estimated
costs £41,900
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

Page 66

Option 2 – Mini roundabout. Estimated cost £96,000

Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

Page 67

Option 3a - signalised junction 3 way estimated
costs £388,519
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

Page 68

Option 3b - signalised junction 4 way estimated
costs £552,546.74
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

Page 69

Option 3c - signalised junction ped crossing only
estimated costs £525,900.08
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

Option 4 One way system estimated cost excluding traffic orders and lining £72,000

Page 70
Rochdale Borough Council, Network Management

Page

14

NETWORK MANAGEMENT
ROCHDALE MBC
NUMBER ONE RIVERSIDE
SMITH STREET

APPENDIX 4C

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Heywood

Name of Request Originator

Councillor McCarthy

Project Manager & Ext

Michael Aiken

Completed by

Michael Aiken

Township Ref

Service Ref

HTC/08/20

Date Completed

11/11/2020

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Heywood civic concourse improvement works

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)
Scheme comments from
Highways

Remove existing paving and replace with high quality amenity paving
similar to current product installed around no1 Riverside.

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)
Township Priorities Met

Improve appearance of the area

Land Owner

Rochdale Council and Private

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

Option 1 £110,800
Option 2 £130,800

Place

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
No services will be affected by the works

Page 71

Risks that may change estimate
If service diversions are required as part of the works
Total Estimated Fees

£10,000

Total Estimated Works Costs
**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

Option 1 £100,800
Option 2 £120,800
Option 1 £110,800
Option 2 £130,800

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

Within 3 months of approval

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
eg start within two months of receiving commission. Evidence: fees being expended on system.

Completion Date

Within 6 weeks of approval

Evidence
eg completion within six months of start date. Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of
final account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 72

